FAIRVIEW ACRES LATERAL WATER USERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

PO BOX 6377 **BOISE, ID 83707**



Voicemail 208-658-1263 fairviewacreslaterals@gmail.com

RE-STATEMENT OF BY-LAWS



ARTICLE I

OFFICES

The principle and registered office of the corporation in the State of Idaho shall be located at Garden City or Boise, Ada County, Idaho, with a present mailing address of P.O. Box 6377 Boise, Idaho 83707.

ARTICLE II

MEMBERS

- Section 1. Eligibility. Each owner of any property which shall be served by the water system or systems of the corporation shall be eligible for membership in the corporation. Such membership shall at all times be identified with the owner of the property. Membership and continuation thereof shall be dependent upon the ownership of any property served by a water system of the corporation.
- Section 2. Rights and Interests. There shall be one voting right for each member who owns property served by the systems. There shall only be one vote per member no matter how many properties a member may own, whether owned in community, jointly or separately.
- Section 3. Expulsion or Cancellation. There can be no expulsion of a member or cancellation of the voting rights of a member so long as he has the qualification set forth in section 1 hereof. Membership shall automatically terminate whenever the member's eligibility shall cease.
- Section 4. Voting by Proxy. Voting may be by proxy in writing, dated and signed by a member: provided, however, no such proxy shall be valid beyond eleven months after its execution, nor binding upon a transferee of any property from the person executing such proxy.
- Section 5. Property Transfers. Transfer of ownership of any property shall not relieve succeeding owner from the obligation to Fairview Acres Lateral Water Users Association, Inc. for unpaid assessments and charges.

ARTICLE III

MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

Section 1. Annual Meeting. An annual meeting of the members shall be held at the principal and registered office or at a location specified by the Board of Directors in each year, beginning with the year 2009 at the hour of 7 o'clock pm. on the third or fourth Friday in March of each year, for the purpose of electing directors and for the transaction of such other business as may come before the meeting. If the day fixed for the annual meeting shall be a legal holiday in the State of Idaho, such meeting shall be held on the next succeeding Friday. If the election of directors shall not be held on the day designated herein for an annual meeting, or at any adjournment thereof, the Board of Directors shall cause the election to be held at a special meeting of the members as soon thereafter as conveniently may be.

Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members may be called by the President, the Board of Directors, or not less than one-tenth of the members having voting rights.

Section 3. Place of Meeting. The Board of Directors may designate any place within the county of Ada, State of Idaho, as the place of meeting for an annual meeting or for any special meeting called by the Board of Directors. If no designation is made or if a special meeting be otherwise called, the place of the meeting shall be the registered office of the corporation in the county of Ada, State of Idaho, but if all members shall meet at any time and place, either within or without the County of Ada, State of Idaho, and consent to the holding of a meeting, such meeting shall be valid without call or notice and at such meeting any corporate action may be taken.

Section 4. Notice of Meetings. Written or printed notice stating the place, day and hour of any meeting of members shall be delivered either personally, by mail or by Legal Notice in a local newspaper to each member entitled to vote at such meeting, by persons calling the meeting. In case of a special meeting or when required by statute or by these by-laws, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called shall be stated in the notice. If mailed, the notice of a meeting shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the member at his address as it appears on the records of the corporation, with postage thereon prepaid.

Section 5. Informal Action by Members. Any action required by law to be taken at a meeting of the members, or any action which may be taken at a meeting of members, may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the members entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof.

Section 6. Quorum. The majority of votes present at any meeting shall constitute a quorum at such meeting.

Section 7. Proxies. At any meeting of members, a member entitled to vote may vote by proxy executed in writing by the member or by his duly authorized attorney-in-fact. No proxy shall be valid after eleven months from the date of its execution, unless otherwise provided in the proxy.

Section 8. Voting by Mail. Where directors or officers are to be elected by members, such election may be conducted by mail in such manner as the Board of Directors shall determine.

ARTICLE IV

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. General Powers. The affairs of the corporation shall be managed by its Board of Directors, and the Directors need not be members of the corporation.

Section 2. Number, Tenure, and Qualification. The number of directors shall be three unless; at a regular annual meeting of the members, a resolution is adopted providing that the number of directors for the next ensuing year shall be either five, seven, or nine persons. A majority of those present at a legally constituted meeting of the members may adopt such a resolution. Each director successor shall hold office until the end of his/her term and until his/her successor shall have been elected and qualified.

- Section 3. Regular Meetings. A regular meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held without other notice than this by-law, immediately after the annual meeting of members. The Board of Directors may provide by agreement the time and place, within the County of Ada, State of Idaho, for the holding of regular or additional meetings of the Board without other notices than such agreement.
- Section 4. Special Meetings. Special Meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by or at the request of the president or any two Directors. The person or persons authorized to call special meetings of the Board may fix any place within the County of Ada, State of Idaho, as the place for holding any special meeting of the Board called by them.
- Section 5. Notice. Notice of any special meeting of the Board of Directors will be given at least two (2) days previously thereto by written or verbal notice delivered personally or sent by mail to each Director at his address as shown by the records of the corporation. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when the mail is postmarked by the US postal service. Any director may waive notice of any meeting. The attendance of a Director at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a Director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because of not being properly notified of the meeting. The business to be transacted at the meeting need not be specified in the notice or waiver of notice of such meeting, unless specifically required by law or by these by-laws.
- Section 6. Quorum. A majority of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board; but if less than a majority of the Directors are present at such meeting, a majority of the Directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice.
- Section 7. Manner of Acting. The act of a majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors, unless the act of a greater number is required by law or by these by-laws.
- Section 8. Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors and any directorship to be filled by reason of an increase in the number of Directors shall be filled by the Board of Directors. A director elected to fill a vacancy shall be elected for the unexpired term of his predecessor in office.
- Section 9. Compensation. No Director or member shall receive compensation from the corporation by virtue of the status of being a Director or member, but nothing contained herein shall be construed to preclude any Director or member from serving the corporation in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefor.

ARTICLE V

OFFICERS

Section 1. Officers. The officers of the corporation shall be a President, one or more Vice Presidents (the number thereof to be determined by the Board of Directors), a Secretary and /or a Treasurer, and such other officers as may be elected in accordance with the provisions of this article. The Board of Directors may elect or appoint such other officers, including one or more assistant secretaries and one or more assistant treasurers, as it shall deem desirable, such officers to have the authority and perform the duties prescribed, from time to time, by the Board of Directors. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except that a person may not be both President and Secretary.

Section 2. Election and Term of Office. The term length of each elected officer shall be two (2) years. The officers of the corporation shall be elected bi-annually - annually to fill vacancies - by the members and Board of Directors at the regular annual meeting of members. If the election of officers shall not be held at such meeting, such election shall be held as soon thereafter as conveniently may be. New offices may be created and filled at any meeting of the Board of Directors. Each officer shall hold office until his successor shall have been duly elected and shall have qualified.

Section 3. Removal. Any officer elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board of Directors, whenever in its judgment the best interest of the corporation would be served thereby. But such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the officer so removed.

Section 4. President. The president shall be the principal executive officer of the corporation and shall in general supervise and control all of the business and affairs of the corporation. He shall preside at all meetings of the members and of the Board of Directors. He may sign, with the Secretary or any other proper officer of the corporation authorized by the Board of Directors, any deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other instruments which the Board of Directors have authorized to be executed, except in the cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors or by these by-laws or by statute to some other officer or agent of the corporation; and in general he shall perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Section 5. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or otherwise, may be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.

Section 6. Vice President. In the absence of the President or in event of his inability or refusal to act, the Vice-President (or in the event there be more that one Vice-President, the Vice-Presidents in order of their election) shall perform the duties of the President, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President. Any Vice-President shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the President or by the Board of Directors.

Section 7. Treasurer. If required by the Board of Directors, the Treasurer shall give bond for the faithful discharge of his duties in such sum and with such surety or sureties as the Board of Directors shall determine. The cost of said bond, if any, shall be paid by the corporation. He shall have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the corporation; receive and give receipts for monies due and payable to the corporation from any source whatsoever, and deposit all such monies in the name of the corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other deposits as shall be selected in accordance with the provisions of Article VII of these by-laws: and in general perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the President or by the Board of Directors.

Section 8. Secretary. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of the meetings of the members and of the Board of Directors in one or more books provided for that purpose; see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these by-laws or as required by law; be custodian of the corporate records and, if a corporation seal be adopted by the Board of Directors, be custodian of the seal of the corporation and see that such seal of the corporation is affixed to all documents, the execution of which on behalf of the corporation under its seal, if a corporation seal be adopted by the Board of Directors, is duly authorized in accordance with the provisions of these by-laws; keep a register of the post office address of each member which shall be furnished to the secretary by such member; and in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him/her by the President or by the Board of Directors.

Section 9. Assistant Treasurers and Assistant Secretaries. If required by the Board of Directors, all Assistant Treasurers shall give bonds for the faithful discharge of their duties in such sums and with such sureties as the Board of Directors shall determine. The Assistant Treasurer and Assistant Secretaries, in general, shall perform such duties as shall be assigned to them by the Treasurer or Secretary or President or the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VI

COMMITTEES

Section 1. Committees of Directors. The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors in office, may designate one or more committees, each of which shall consist of two or more Directors, which committees, to the extent provided in said resolution, shall have and exercise the authority of the Board of Directors, in the management of the corporation; but the designation of such committees and the delegation thereto of authority shall not operate to relieve the Board of Directors, or any individual director, of any responsibility imposed upon it or him/her by law.

Section 2. Other Committees. Other committees not having and exercising the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the corporation may be designated by a resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors present. Members of each such committee shall be members of the corporation, and the President of the corporation shall appoint the members thereof. Any member thereof may be removed by the person or persons authorized to appoint such member whenever in their judgment the best interest of the corporation shall be served by such removal.

Section 3. Term of Office. Each member of a committee shall continue as such until the next annual meeting of the members of the corporation and until his/her successor is appointed, unless the committee shall be sooner terminated, or unless such member be removed from such committee, or unless such member shall cease to qualify as a member thereof.

- Section 4. Chairman. One member of each committee shall be appointed chairman by the person or persons authorized to appoint the members thereof.
- Section 5. Vacancies. Vacancies in the membership of any committee may be filled by appointments made in the same manner as provided in the case of the original appointments.
- Section 6. Quorum. Unless otherwise provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors designating a committee, a majority of the whole committee shall constitute a quorum and the act of a majority of the members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the committee.
- Section 7. Rules. Each committee may adopt rules for its own government not inconsistent with these by-laws or with rules adopted by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VII

CONTRACTS, CHECKS, DEPOSITS, AND FUNDS

Section1. Contracts. The Board of Directors may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents of the corporation, in addition to the officers so authorized by these by-laws, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the corporation, and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the corporation, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

Section 2. Checks, Drafts, Etc. All checks, drafts, or orders for the payment of money, notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the corporation, shall be signed by such officer, officers, or agents of the corporation and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors. In the absence of such determination by the Board of Directors, such instruments shall be signed by the Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer and counter-signed by the President or a Vice-President of the corporation.

Section 3. Deposits. All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board of Directors may select.

Section 4. Gifts. The Board of Directors may accept on behalf of the corporation any contribution, gifts, bequest, or devise for the general purpose or for any special purpose of the corporation.

ARTICLE VIII

BOOKS AND RECORDS

The corporation shall keep correct and complete books and records of accounts and shall also keep minutes of the proceedings of its members, Board of Directors, and any committees having authority of the Board of Directors, and shall keep at the registered or principal office a record giving the names and addresses of the members entitled to vote. All books and records of the corporation may be inspected by any member, or his agent or attorney for any proper purpose at any reasonable time.

ARTICLE IX

FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the corporation shall begin on the first day of March and end on the last day of February of the following calendar year.

ARTICLE X

ASSESSMENTS AND CHARGES

Section 1. The Board of Directors shall establish, levy and assess and collect the assessments and charges referred to in Article II of the Articles of Incorporation.

Section 2. Purpose of Assessments and Charges. The assessments and charges levied by the corporation shall be for the objects set forth in Article II of the Articles of Incorporation, and shall include, but not be limited to hereby, obtaining funds for the payment of taxes and insurance on property of the corporation or for the protection of the officers and directors of the corporation in their acts for the corporation, and repair, and replacement and additions thereto, and cost of labor, equipment, material, management, supervision and any other service that the Board of Directors determines is necessary for the proper operation of the corporation.

Section 3. Collection of Assessments and Charges. The Board of Directors shall prescribe the method and manner of collection of assessments and charges for restoration of service and any other steps which in the sole discretion of the Board of Directors may be necessary to assure collection of said levy.

Fairview Acres Lateral Water Users Association, Inc. P.O. Box 6377 Boise, Idaho 83707 (208) 658-1263

July 10, 1949

Ditch Policy

Fairview Acres Lateral Water Users Association, Inc. has established and maintains an open ditch policy. All lateral channels and ditches within the association are to be open for the flow of irrigation water.

Property owners are permitted to cover or tile channels and ditches passing through their property with preapproval by the Board of Directors and the City of Garden City. Covering of channels and ditches must be done in a manner which does not impede the flow of irrigation water. (Note Village of Garden City Ordinance #213) and meets the erosion and storm water requirements as identified by the City of Garden City. The property owner is liable for any expense incurred in covering of such channels and ditches.

Maintenance, repair and upkeep of any covered channel or ditch is the sole responsibility of the property owner. Fairview Acres Lateral Water Users Association, Inc. does not assume any responsibility for any covered channel or ditch once it is covered by the property owner.

(Reprinted 6/88)

(Updated March 2009)

FY 2009 RESOLUTION 1

March 18, 2009

BOARD APPROVAL FOR UPDATED BY-LAWS

On this day and by signature the Board of Directors of Fairview Acres Lateral Water Users Association, Inc. resolve to approve and adopt the attached updated by-laws.

Whereas, the Board of Directors determined that the by-laws were last updated in 1988 A.D. and changes have occurred within the course of business; the corporation by-laws needed to be updated to continue to be effective in their purpose and use.

Therefore, the Board of Directors established a committee of members to propose the necessary updates. The committee provided the proposed updates now being adopted by the Board of Directors.

SIGNATURES OF THIS RESOLUTION

President Richard I Fendergrase
Richard Pendergrass
Vice-President Randy Lachn
Randy Goehring
Secretary Pagy Clements
Peggy Clements
Treasurer Zallar
Kevin Rallard

Call to order at 7:pm

By laws amended – update to them motion to change board member to 5 members. Public works dept employee.

Reading of last year's minutes accepted by Richard Clements and second by Randy Goahring.

Jim Neil requested to move a pipe on his property. Richard talked about what to do and how to do; Jerry Blickfeldt said ACHD or GC on 36th Street.

Kevin talks about the ditch policy in 1947. Bylaw about the covering of ditches Idaho State 42. Cannot opt out if pipe is there. Opt out of property at 37th Chinden Crawford. Opt out forms to see if we can get here off.

Barbara Lavell to ask to get water at her property 43th and Adams.

Kevin Treasure report about the budget Read letter that was sent out to all owners Letter from Garden City to all owners of property. By laws for assessment changes the Fiscal year to March to February. Meeting annual to march not December.

Motion to reduce the board to 3 or 5

By law to re???? The new changes

Attention year to be voted on to keep the same board members -----By law

Incorporation of FALWUA to collect assessments ad

Budget for 2009 by Kevin Ballard accepted in Oct. of 2008 Lien fee \$15

Kevin Ballard moves to set a member of the board to 5 and put one on Garden City and everyone agreed.

Kevin Ballard nonnative Jim Neil for Garden City. Seconded by Jerry Blickfeldt all approved

Richard Pendergrass made it clear that all members must to attend most of meeting and seconded by Richard Clements.

Doris Jensen resigned as of the 2009 Steve Cunningham also resigned in 2009

Call to meeting close adjourned 8:14pm

Kevin -ad

By law

Incorporation of FALWUA to collect assessments ad

Budget for 2009 by Kevin Ballard accepted in Oct. of 2008 Lien fee \$15

Kevin Ballard moves to set a member of the board to 5 and put one on Garden City and everyone agreed.

Kevin Ballard nonnative Jim Neil for Garden City. Seconded by Jerry Blickfeldt all approved

Richard Pendergrass made it clear that all members must to attend most of meeting and seconded by Richard Clements.

Doris Jensen resigned as of the 2009 Steve Cunningham also resigned in 2009

Call to meeting close adjourned 8:14pm

Kevin -ad